WEST WHITELAND TOWNSHIP
PLANNING COMMISSION
MINUTES
Wednesday, May 16, 2007

MEMBERS PRESENT TOWNSHIP STAFF

Jo Ann Kelton John Weller, Planning Director
Bob Hewitt Pat Layman, Recording Secretary
David Coghlan

Robert LeBoutilliler SUPERVISORS PRESENT

Diane Snyder
Keith Choper
MEMBERS ABSENT
Dan Corey
Nancy Carville

Jo Ann Kelton, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.

1. REVIEW OF MEETING MINUTES
MOTION: To approve the April 18, 2007 minutes, as presented.
ACTION: Passed 3-0-1 (Coghlan/Hewitt) LeBoutillier abstained.

PUBLIC COMMENT
None.

PLANS:

1. Sunoco
Third Review: Conditional Use
Hearing: May 31, 2007
Request: Conversion of existing gas station to a convenience store with
gasoline sales

Michael Shiring, attorney for the applicant, introduced Michael Parody, of Sunoco’s
Marketing Division; Jeff Bauer, Senior Engineer for the Mid-Atlantic Region; Clayton McCane,
Project Manager for Sunoco; John Anderson, Civil Engineer; Chris Williams, of McMahon
Associates, and Vincent Iacone, franchise owner.

Since the applicant last appeared before the Commission, the plans were revised and
reviewed by the Township’s consultants. Pedestrian access had been added to the plan, with
sidewalk extending from the north along Whitford Road then turning right into the site
continuing to the building. A large landscaped island along the Route 30 frontage was scaled
back to provide sidewalk, as requested by the Commission. A Commission member noted that



Planning Commission Minutes
May 16, 2007

the proposed sidewalk did not extend all the way to the intersection of Whitford Road and
Route 30. Mr. Anderson said there was room to provide the sidewalk, but there was concern
about doing so because pedestrian crossings were currently prohibited at the intersection. To
extend the sidewalk to the intersection would encourage people to walk to the intersection and
then cross the road. There was a striped crosswalk across the easternmost access into the site
and a curb ramp was provided.

o Ms. Kelton — explained that the Township encouraged sidewalks in the hope of
eventually linking pieces together to create a more pedestrian-friendly
community.

o Mr. Hewitt - expressed concern about promoting pedestrian access to the
intersection, which could lead pedestrians to try to cross an unsafe intersection.

o Mr. Coghlan — stated that sidewalk access was a very important consideration.

o Mr. LeBoutillier — asked what would be involved in upgrading the intersection to
accommodate pedestrian traffic.

Mr. Weller said he had received a number of inquiries about the property on the
northeast corner of the intersection and anticipated a redevelopment of the site soon.

When asked if the applicant would be willing to escrow funds to extend the sidewalk at
a future time when the intersection was made safe for pedestrians, Mr. Anderson said it was
more expensive to escrow funds than to construct the extension. Mr. McCane said they would
agree to extend the sidewalk, but said they would make it clear to the Board of Supervisors at
the Conditional Use hearing that Sunoco felt there was a safety issue. Mr. McCane said if the
Township insisted on the extension, they would construct it now, rather than escrow funds to
construct it in the future.

Mr. Williams said before efforts were undertaken to make the intersection safe for
pedestrians, it should first be determined why the pedestrian prohibition was in place. Mr.
Williams said to make the intersection pedestrian friendly would require modifications to the
traffic signal timing to extend the green time to ensure adequate green time for pedestrians to
cross, as well as additional striping and signing, and installation of pedestrian signal heads. Mr.
Williams said the work could be done in phases, doing only half of the intersection at a time.
Mrs. Snyder suggested that the applicant research why the intersection was not pedestrian
friendly and what it would take to change that. Mr. Williams would do that by talking with
PennDOT and Traffic Planning and Design before beginning the hearing before the Board on
May 31, 2007.

Mr. Shiring said the applicant would accept, as a condition of approval, that at such time
that the intersection was made safe for pedestrian crossings, Sunoco would install the
additional stretch of sidewalk to the intersection.

Mr. Shiring said the quantity of stormwater was improved with the addition of more
green space. Mr. Anderson said a large landscaped island was created along Whitford Road
due to the removal of an existing access lane. Part of the stormwater would drain toward that
island. No concrete curbing was proposed, so as to allow the water to sheet flow across the
pavement picking up any particulates or sediment in the asphalt. A small depression in the
landscaped area and an under drain would allow the water to infiltrate through the topsoil and



Planning Commission Minutes
May 16, 2007

the grass. Seed mixture for different types of water tolerant vegetation would be provided that
would pick up particulates as well. The water would seep through into an under drain that
would tie into an inlet on the site, with a hood to allow for oil/water separating prior to going
into the state system. Mr. Anderson said there were two redundant methods of water quality —
a natural filtration, and a physical filtration method in an actual PennDOT style inlet.  Mr.
Anderson said the Township’s engineer felt there was a need for a greater mechanical filtration
device such as a physical oil/water separator, after the water left the under drain and tied into
the system. Mr. Anderson did not see the need for that. He said based on the vegetation
filtration and the mechanical filtration being provided, the system was adequate. He thought
that Spotts Stevens McCoy (SSM) misunderstood the applicant’s detail and thought the
applicant was wrapping the entire under drain trench in plastic. Mr. Anderson said they did not
intend that at all. Because the area was limestone, they were wrapping the bottom of the
trench in plastic to prevent sink holes.

Mr. Anderson did not feel that the plan needed the large and expensive concrete
structure oil/water/sand filtration device. He felt that the depression would act as a natural
filtration device, and noted it was an accepted method by PA DEP. Mr. Anderson felt he could
satisfy SSM. Mr. Anderson said that by eliminating the automobile service aspect of the
business, they eliminated a large aspect of potential contamination. Mr. Parody said there were
currently spill kits on site used for any spills that may occur.

General Note 26 on the plan was printed in error and would be removed.
The applicant would comply with the Stanley Stubbe letter of May 7, 2007.

The last time the applicant appeared before the Commission, there was concern about
circulation in the diesel fueling area. Mr. Anderson said a 30 foot striped staging area was
provided for vehicles to fuel up safely. Vehicles would be able to pull in forward or back in. He
said there was plenty of circulation room.

Mr. Anderson said a site modification to the plan was made in the western section to
accommodate tanker trucks. The tanker would proceed in a westerly direction on Lincoln
Highway, make a right-hand turn into the westerly most entrance and then release product into
the underground tanks and exit the site proceeding in front of the building, between the
building and canopy.

The applicant would comply with the Traffic Planning and Design (TPD) letter of May 8,
2007.

Discussion moved to the Thomas Comitta Associates (TCA) letter of May 9, 2007. Mr.
Shiring said that Mr. Theurkauf was attempting to redesign the site to allow for a greater buffer
along the western border. Presently, Mr. Shiring said there was a fairly dense buffer of 38 feet.
Mr. Theurkauf’s redesign would result in a 44 foot buffer. Mr. Shiring said it was not feasible to
redesign the fueling points and a new canopy. Mr. Bauer said to redesign the islands would
cost approximately $290,000. Mr. Shiring said it would kill the project. It would also create an
access issue for the fueling trucks, because it would narrow the aisle down to 25 feet and
extend the fueling point island such that the fuel trucks would not be able to navigate through
the site.



Planning Commission Minutes

May 16, 2007

O
(@)
O

Ms. Kelton - felt the redesign was too much to expect for the conversion project
planned.

Mr. LeBoutillier - felt the applicant would not gain anything with a redesign.

Mr. Hewitt — did not see a benefit to a redesign.

Mr. Coghlan — did not like the redesign.

Mr. Anderson said they would work with TCA to comply with the remaining issues. He
said additional plants could be added to the western buffer.

A Commission member again expressed a desire to see the Whitford Road and Route 30
intersection upgraded to safely accommodate pedestrian crossings, and encouraged the
applicant to consider accommodations for more diesel fuel in the future.

Mr. Shiring said he believed the signage issues could be resolved to comply with the
Township’s Ordinance, and if not, the applicant would seek relief from the Zoning Hearing

Board.

MOTION: To recommend to the Board of Supervisors approval of the Sunoco Conditional

Use plan, last revised April 16, 2007, conditioned on the following:

Applicant to consult with PennDOT and TPD to determine what
upgrades are necessary to make the Whitford Road/Route 30
intersection pedestrian friendly, and determine the issues involved in
why it was not initially made pedestrian friendly;

Applicant to extend the sidewalk to the intersection when it becomes

safe for pedestrians;

The end stormwater design shall be to the satisfaction of SSM;

Compliance with the Stanley Stubbe letter of May 7, 2007;

Note #26 shall be removed from the plan;

Compliance with the TPD letter of May 8, 2007;

The Planning Commission did not recommend adoption of the

redesign sketched by TCA, but the applicant shall comply with the

remaining issues in the TCA letter of May 9, 2007, with the exception
of those that pertain to the redesign; specifically:
o The first four paragraphs of Item #5 — strike

The second paragraph of item #4 — strike

First bullet point in item #6 — strike

Second bullet point in item #6 — strike

Applicant cannot comply with item #7, but will make the effort

to comply as much as practicable and possible with Section

281-37.D of the SLDO.

o Applicant cannot comply with item #8 because of limited area
on the western side of Whitford Road, but will do as much as
possible, and will provide more screening for the enclosed
trash area;

O
O
O
O



Planning Commission Minutes
May 16, 2007

o Item #11 — basin landscaping (because the area was more of
a depression or swale than a basin and to add landscaping
along the frontage would be a hindrance to traffic).
o Item #13 pertains to the redesign, but the applicant shall
increase the plantings along the western buffer.
Compliance with the signage Ordinance or seek appropriate zoning
relief.

ACTION: 4-0 (Kelton/LeBoutillier).

2. La-Z-Boy Furniture Galleries
First Review: Conditional Use
Hearing: June 12, 2007
Request: Construction of 17,767 square foot La-Z-Boy retail furniture store

on site of wvacant Frankés Nursery and Crafts

Alyson Mamourian, of Riley Riper Hollin & Colagreco, and Cee Jay Frederick were in
attendance representing the applicant. The plan proposed a demolition of the existing Frank’s
Nursery and Craft store west of Route 100 on the south side of Lincoln Highway, and
construction of a new La-Z-Boy retail furniture gallery. The total site was 11 acres. A portion
of the site received land development approval last year for a new Sovereign Bank branch,
which was currently under construction.

The existing vacant building contained 22,500 square feet with 121 parking spaces. The
plan proposed a smaller building (17,767 square feet) with 72 parking spaces resulting in a
reduction in impervious coverage by 8,850 square feet. The proposed building would be in the
same location as the existing building, and no new access points were proposed. There was
currently a right-in only on the western portion of the site, a signalized main driveway, and an
exit only driveway on the eastern portion of the site.

Traffic would be able to circulate all the way around the new building with a loading
area in the back. Mr. Frederick explained that trucks would need to circle the building in order
to exit the site, and customers may pick up purchases at the rear of the store. However, he
explained that the building would be a showroom, rather than a warehouse.

Architectural renderings were not yet available, but would be submitted before the next
appearance before the Commission.

A Commission member asked if the applicant would be willing to place some parking in
reserve. Mr. Frederick said some of the parking would be used by Sovereign Bank, but he could
ask the applicant if they would be willing to put some parking in reserve.

Mr. Frederick said he did not see anything in any of the consultant review letters that
the applicant would not be able to comply with. He noted that the lighting at the back of the
building did not illuminate the ground well enough, and two additional lights were proposed at
rear of the building.

S



Planning Commission Minutes
May 16, 2007

Access was on the north side of the building. Mr. Weller noted that three sides of the
building were meant to be seen by the general public, and would need to comply with the
Township’s facade requirements.

Ms. Mamourian explained that when Sovereign Bank was approved, the applicant agreed
to provide an easement to the Township for pedestrian access to the Thomas Mill, but the
Township did not know the exact location at the time. She said the applicant had no objection
to granting an easement in the rear of the site. Mr. Weller said the Historical Commission had
not yet determined the location. Mr. Frederick said the applicant’s offer of an easement would
stand. The plan would be presented to the Historical Commission on May 23, 2007.

A Commission member questioned the landscaping in the front of the proposed building.
Mr. Frederick said they were bound by the setback to Route 30 and a buffer requirement. The
parking lot was moved back considerably. At the southwest corner, the site abutted the
floodplain, so the grade could not be changed. Between the floodplain in the rear and the
setback in the front, Mr. Frederick said they had done as much landscaping as they could. A
slight landscaped island was provided, running east/west on the south side of the parking base
with some pass throughs.

Vehicular circulation through the site was discussed. Mr. Frederick said the island at the
main entrance was trimmed back at both ends to facilitate truck turns, and also helped execute
the crosswalk. While the site was designed for the largest truck allowed on Pennsylvania
roadways, Mr. Frederick said the applicant would only be using trucks with a 26 foot bed.

The BMP-1 located at the southwest corner of the site was a depression that water
could sit in. Infiltration was not possible because of the carbonate geology.

The applicant would submit architectural drawings and return to the Commission.
PLANNING COMMISSION BUSINESS

Mr. Weller reported on his attendance at the American Planning Association conference
in Philadelphia.

The meeting adjourned at 9:20 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Pat Layman
Recording Secretary



